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This consent order requires, among other things, a Pennsylvania-based manufac-
turer of professional dental-care products to divest, within nine months of the
order, all assets related to the manufacturing and marketing of its U.S. Valiant
silver alloy product line to a Commission-approved purchaser. If the divesti-
ture is not completed in the designated time-frame, the respondent is required
to agree to a Commission-appointed trustee to divest its interest in the assets
related to its Valiant Alloy products. In addition, the order requires a Hold
Separate Agreement during any period in which the respondent possesses an
ownership interest in the U.S. Valiant assets, and, for a 10-year period, requires
the respondent to obtain Commission approval prior to acquiring any silver
alloy manufacturer or distributor.
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For the Commission: Casey Triggs and Steven A. Newborn.
For the respondent: J. Patrick Clark, in-house counsel, York,
PA. and Judy Whalley, Howrey & Simon, Washington, D.C.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission (“Commission”), having reason
to believe that respondent, Dentsply International, Inc., a corporation
subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Trade Commission, has
agreed to acquire certain Professional Dental Care assets of Johnson
& Johnson, a corporation subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal
Trade Commission, in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commis-
sion Act (“FTC Act™), 15 U.S.C. 45; and it appearing to the Commis-
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sion that a proceeding in respect thereof would be in the public
interest, hereby issues its complaint, stating its charges as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this complaint the following definitions
apply:

1. Dentsply International, Inc. (“Dentsply”’) means Dentsply
International, Inc., a corporation organized, existing, and doing
business under and by the virtue of the laws of Delaware, its
directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives, its
domestic and foreign parents, predecessors, successors, assigns,
divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates, partnerships and joint ventures, and
the directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives of its
domestic and foreign predecessors, successors, assigns, divisions,
subsidiaries, affiliates, partnerships and joint ventures. The words
“subsidiary,” “affiliate” and “joint venture” refer to any firm in which
there is partial (10 percent or more) or total ownership or control
between corporations.

2. Johnson & Johnson (“J&J’) means Johnson & Johnson, a
corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of New Jersey, its directors, officers, employees,
agents and representatives, its domestic and foreign parents,
predecessors, successors, assigns, divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates,
partnerships and joint ventures, and the directors, officers,
employees, agents and representatives of its domestic and foreign
predecessors, successors, assigns, divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates,
partnerships and joint ventures.

3. “Premium silver alloy business” means the business of
formulating, manufacturing, marketing and selling silver amalgam
alloy products, perceived to be of high quality and consistency, used
by dentists in the treatment of dental caries.
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II. THE RESPONDENT

4. Respondent Dentsply is a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its headquarters at 570
West College Avenue, York, Pennsylvania.

5. For purposes of this proceeding, Dentsply is, and at all times
relevant herein has been, engaged in commerce as “commerce” is
defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12,
and is a corporation whose business is in or affecting commerce as
“commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 44.

III. THE ACQUIRED COMPANY

6. J&IJ is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of New Jersey, with its headquarters at One Johnson &
Johnson Plaza, New Brunswick, New Jersey.

7. J&J is, and at all times relevant herein has been engaged in
commerce as “‘commerce’ is defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act,
as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12, and is a corporation whose business is in
or affecting commerce as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the
FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 44.

IV. THE ACQUISITION

8. On or about April 27, 1992, Dentsply and J&J agreed to enter
into an agreement whereby Dentsply will acquire certain professional
dental assets of the Professional Dental Care Products division of J&J
for a price of approximately $62 million (“Acquisition”).

V. THE RELEVANT MARKET

9. For purposes of this complaint, the relevant line of commerce
in which to analyze the Acquisition is the premium silver alloy
business.
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10. For purposes of this complaint, the relevant section of the
country is the United States.

11. The relevant market set forth in paragraphs nine and ten is
highly concentrated, whether measured by Herfindahl-Hirschmann
Indices (“HHI") or two-firm and four-firm concentration ratios.

12. Entry into the relevant market is difficult.

13. Dentsply and J&J are actual competitors in the relevant
market.

VL. EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITION

14. The effect of the Acquisition may be substantially to lessen
competition and to tend to create a monopoly in the relevant market
in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 18, and
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45, in the
following ways, among others:

a. Actual competition between Dentsply and J&J will be
eliminated;

b. The likelihood of collusion in the relevant market would be
increased.

15. All of the above increase the likelihood that firms in the
relevant market will increase prices and restrict output both in the
near future and in the long term.

VII. VIOLATIONS CHARGED

16. The acquisition agreement described in paragraph eight
constitutes a violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 45.

17. The acquisition described in paragraph eight, if consum-
mated, would constitute a violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act,
as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amend-
ed, 15U.S.C. 45.
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DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of the proposed acquisition by respondent of certain assets and
businesses of Johnson & Johnson (“J&J”), and the respondent having
been furnished thereafter with a copy of a draft of Complaint that the
Bureau of Competition presented to the Commission for its
consideration and which, if issued by the Commission, would charge
respondent with violations of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commis-
sion Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45; and

Respondent, its attorneys, and counsel for the Commission having
thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order, an
admission by respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the
aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said
agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in
such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission’s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Acts, and that a complaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the
executed consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public
record for a period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with
the procedure described in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission
hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent Dentsply International, Inc. (“Dentsply”) is a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of Delaware with
its offices and principal place of business at 570 West College
Avenue, York, Pennsylvania.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding
is in the public interest.
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ORDER

As used in this order, the following definitions shall apply:

A. “Dentsply” means Dentsply International, Inc., a corporation
organized, existing, and doing business under and by the virtue of the
laws of Delaware, its directors, officers, employees, agents and
representatives, its domestic and foreign parents, predecessors,
successors, assigns, divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates, partnerships
and joint ventures, and the directors, officers, employees, agents and
representatives of its domestic and foreign predecessors, successors,
assigns, divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates, partnerships and joint
ventures. The words “subsidiary,” “affiliate” and “joint venture”
refer to any firm in which there is partial (10 percent or more) or total
ownership or control between corporations.

B. “J&J’ means Johnson & Johnson, a corporation organized,
existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of New
Jersey, its directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives,
its domestic and foreign parents, predecessors, successors, assigns,
divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates, partnerships and joint ventures, and
the directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives of its
domestic and foreign predecessors, successors, assigns, divisions,
subsidiaries, affiliates, partnership and joint ventures.

C. “Commission” means the Federal Trade Commission.

D. “Acquisition” means the acquisition of certain assets of J&J’s
Professional Dental Care Products division by Dentsply.

E. “Acquirer” means the party or parties to whom Dentsply
divests the assets herein ordered to be divested.

F. “Silver alloy” means a metal-based alloy product which, when
combined with mercury, forms an amalgam that is used to fill dental
caries.

G. “Valiant Products” means Dentsply's silver alloy products
marketed in the United States under the names “Valiant,” “Valiant
Ph.D,” “Valiant Snap-Set,” and “Valiant Extended Time.”
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H. “Valiant Business” means Dentsply's business of manufac-
turing, marketing, and selling Valiant Products in the United States.

I. “Valiant Assets” means all assets constituting or otherwise
related to the Valiant Business, including but not limited to:

1. All books, records, manuals, reports, dockets, lists, advertising
and promotional materials and other documents relating to the
Valiant Products;

2. Valiant product line Profit and Loss Statements relating to
each of the Valiant Products;

3. All United States trademarks together with all trademark
registrations and applications therefor relating to Valiant Products;

4. All lists of stock keeping units (“SKUs”); i.e., all forms, pack-
age sizes and other units in which Valiant Products are sold and
which are used in records of sales and inventories;

5. All Bills of Materials for each of the Valiant Products, con-
sisting of full manufacturing standards and procedures, quality
control specifications, specifications for raw materials and compo-
nents, including all lists of authorized sources for materials and
components;

6. All artwork and mechanical drawings currently in use relating
to each of the Valiant Products;

7. All fixed assets listed on Schedule I hereto;

8. All lists of all customers, including but not limited to, distribu-
tors, dentists, and dental schools, who have bought Valiant Products,
including all files of names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the
individual customer contacts, and the unit and dollar amounts of
sales, by product, to each customer;

9. All marketing information relating to Valiant Products,
including but not limited to Dentsply's consumer and trade promo-
tional, marketing and business programs;

10. All inventories of finished goods, packaging and unique raw
materials relating to Valiant Products;
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11. All names of manufacturers under contract with Dentsply to
produce Valiant Products and all contracts with outside suppliers for
formulations unique to the Valiant Products;

12. All product testing and laboratory research data relating to
Valiant Products, including but not limited to toxicity research data,
all regulatory registrations and correspondence;

13. All consumer correspondence and documents related to the
Valiant Business;

14. All price lists for Valiant Products;

15. All information relating to costs of production for each of the
Valiant Products, including but not limited to raw material costs,
packaging costs, and advertising and promotional costs;

16. All sales data relating to Valiant Products;

17. A sublicense to make, use and sell certain technology in the
U.S. related to the design for a sealed, mercury-tight dental mixing
capsule under claims of certain patents owned by Ernest Muhlbauer
K.G. and granted to Dentsply under a License Agreement dated
November 26, 1979, as amended;

18. A sublicense to use and sell certain technology in the United
States related to the formulation of the dental alloy used in the
Valiant Products under claims of certain patents owned by Special
Metals Corporation and granted to Dentsply under a License Agree-
ment dated October 8, 1980, as amended; and

19. All patents and patent applications owned by Dentsply related
to the Valiant Business and the formulas, processes, technology,
know-how, trade secrets, manufacturing information, specifications,
plans, drawings and data and other tangible embodiments of know-
how used in the Valiant Business, including (without limitation) the
technology and know-how required to manufacture commercially
acceptable products.

J. “Worldwide Valiant Products” means Dentsply’s silver alloy
products marketed anywhere in the world under the names “Valiant,”
“Valiant Ph.D,” “Valiant Snap-Set,” and “Valiant Extended Time.”

K. “Worldwide Valiant Business™ means Dentsply’s business of
manufacturing, marketing, and selling Worldwide Valiant Products.
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L. “Worldwide Valiant Assets” means all assets constituting or
otherwise related to the Worldwide Valiant Business, including but
not limited to:

1. All books, records, manuals, reports, dockets, lists, advertising
and promotional materials and other documents relating to the
Worldwide Valiant Products;

2. Valiant product line Profit and Loss Statements relating to
each of the Worldwide Valiant Products;

3. All trademarks together with all trademark registrations and
applications therefor relating to Worldwide Valiant Products;

4. All Iists of stock keeping units (“SKUs”); i.e., all forms, pack-
age sizes and other units in which Worldwide Valiant Products are
sold and which are used in records of sales and inventories;

5. All Bills of Materials for each of the Worldwide Valiant Prod-
ucts, consisting of full manufacturing standards and procedures,
quality control specifications, specifications for raw materials and
components, including all lists of authorized sources for materials
and components;

6. All artwork and mechanical drawings currently in use relating
to each of the Worldwide Valiant Products;

7. All fixed assets listed on Schedule I hereto;

8. All lists of all customers, including but not limited to, distribu-
tors, dentists, and dental schools, who have bought Worldwide
Valiant Products, including all files of names, addresses, and
telephone numbers of the individual customer contacts, and the unit
and dollar amounts of sales, by product, to each customer;

9. All marketing information relating to Worldwide Valiant
Products, including but not limited to Dentsply’s consumer and trade
promotional, marketing and business programs;

10. All inventories of finished goods, packaging and unique raw
materials relating to Worldwide Valiant Products;

11. All names of manufacturers under contract with Dentsply to
produce Worldwide Valiant Products and all contracts with outside
suppliers for formulations unique to Worldwide Valiant Products:
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12. All product testing and laboratory research data relating to
Worldwide Valiant Products, including but not limited to toxicity
research data, all regulatory registrations and correspondence;

13. All consumer correspondence and documents related to the
Worldwide Valiant Business;

14. All price lists for Worldwide Valiant Products;

15. All information relating to costs of production for each of the
Worldwide Valiant Products, including but not limited to raw
material costs, packaging costs, and advertising and promotional
costs;

16. All sales data relating to Worldwide Valiant Products;

17. A sublicense to make, use and sell certain technology in
certain designated countries of the world related to the design for a
sealed, mercury-tight dental mixing capsule under claims of certain
patents owned by Ernest Muhlbauer K.G. and granted to Dentsply
under a License Agreement dated November 26, 1979;

18. A sublicense to use and sell certain technology in the United
States related to the formulation of the dental alloy used in the
Worldwide Valiant Products under claims of certain patents owned
by Special Metals Corporation and granted to Dentsply under a
License Agreement dated October 8, 1980, as amended; and

19.  All patents and patent applications owned by Dentsply
related to the Worldwide Valiant Business and the formulas,
processes, technology, know-how, trade secrets, manufacturing
information, specifications, plans, drawings and data and other
tangible embodiments of know-how used in the Worldwide Valiant
Business, including (without limitation) the technology and know-
how required to manufacture commercially acceptable products.

M. “Dispersalloy Products” means J&J’s silver alloy products,
marketed in the United States under the names “Dispersalloy” and

“Unison.”
N. “Dispersalloy Business” means the business of manufac-
turing, marketing, and selling Dispersalloy Products.
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II.
It is ordered, That:

A. Dentsply shall divest, absolutely and in good faith, within
nine (9) months of the date this order becomes final, the Valiant
Assets.

B. Dentsply shall divest the Valiant Assets only to an acquirer
that receives the prior approval of the Commission, and only in a
manner that receives the prior approval of the Commission. The
purpose of the divestiture of the Valiant Assets is to ensure the
continuation of such assets as an ongoing, viable enterprise and to
remedy the lessening of competition resulting from the proposed
acquisition as alleged in the Commission’s complaint.

C. Dentsply shall make available to the acquirer such Dentsply
personnel, assistance and training as the acquirer might reasonably
need to transfer technology and know-how and shall continue
providing such personnel, assistance and training at no additional cost
for a period of time sufficient to satisfy the acquirer’s management
that its personnel are appropriately trained in the technology and
know-how. However, Dentsply shall not be required to continue
providing such personnel, assistance and training for more than six
(6) months after the Valiant Assets are divested pursuant to this
order.

D. Dentsply will provide reasonable cooperation and assistance
to the acquirer in obtaining approvals for the transfer of all
registrations relating to the Valiant Business or the Worldwide
Valiant Business.

E. Dentsply shall comply with all terms of the Hold Separate
Agreement, attached hereto and made a part hereof. Said agreement
shall continue in effect until such time as Dentsply has divested the
Valiant Assets or until such time as the Hold Separate Agreement
provides.

F. Dentsply shall take such action as is necessary and reasonable
to maintain the viability and marketability of the Worldwide Valiant



12 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Decision and Order 116 F.T.C.

Assets and shall not cause or permit the destruction, removal,
wasting, deterioration, or impairment of any of the Worldwide
Valiant Assets except in the ordinary course of business and except
for ordinary wear and tear that does not affect the viability and
marketability of the Worldwide Valiant Assets.

1.
It is further ordered, That:

A. If Dentsply has not divested, absolutely and in good faith and
with the Commission’s approval, the Valiant Assets within nine (9)
months of the date this order becomes final, Dentsply shall consent
to the appointment by the Commission of a trustee to divest the
Valiant Assets only to an acquirer that receives the prior approval of
the Commission, and only in a manner that receives the prior
approval of the Commission. Provided, however, that if the
Commission has not approved or disapproved a proposed divestiture
within 120 days of the date the application for such divestiture has
been put on the public record, the running of the divestiture period
shall be tolled until the Commission approves or disapproves the
divestiture. If the trustee has not divested the Valiant Assets within
the subsequent nine (9) months, the trustee shall divest the
Worldwide Valiant Assets within twelve (12) months thereafter. In
the event the Commission or the Attorney General brings an action
pursuant to Section 5(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15
U.S.C. 45(1), or any other statute enforced by the Commission,
Dentsply shall consent to the appointment of a trustee in such action.
Neither the appointment of a trustee nor a decision not to appoint a
trustee under this paragraph shall preclude the Commission or the
Attorney General from seeking civil penalties or any other relief
available to it, including a court-appointed trustee, pursuant to
Section 5(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, or any other
statute enforced by the Commission, for any failure by Dentsply to
comply with this order.
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B. If a trustee is appointed by the Commission or a court
pursuant to paragraph IILA. of this order, Dentsply shall consent to
the following terms and conditions regarding the trustee's powers,
duties, authorities, and responsibilities:

1. The Commission shall select the trustee, subject to the consent
of Dentsply, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The
trustee shall be a person with experience and expertise in acquisitions
and divestitures.

2. The trustee shall, subject to the prior approval of the Commis-
sion, have the exclusive power and authority to divest the Valiant
Assets, or, as the case may be, to divest the Worldwide Valiant
Assets.

3. The trustee shall have nine (9) months to divest the Valiant
Assets from the date of appointment, and if the Valiant Assets have
not been divested, the trustee shall have twelve (12) months
thereafter to accomplish the divestiture of the Worldwide Valiant
Assets. If, however, at the end of the twelve-month period the trustee
has submitted a plan of divestiture or believes that divestiture can be
accomplished within a reasonable time, the twelve (12) month
divestiture period for the Worldwide Valiant Assets may be extended
by the Commission; provided, however, the Commission may only
extend the twelve (12) month divestiture period two (2) times.

4. The trustee shall have full and complete access to the person-
nel, books, records, and facilities related to the Valiant and World-
wide Valiant Assets, or any other relevant information, as the trustee
may reasonably request. Dentsply shall develop such financial or
other information as such trustee may reasonably request and shall
cooperate with any reasonable request of the trustee. Dentsply shall
take no action to interfere with or impede the trustee’s accomplish-
ment of the divestiture. Any delays in divestiture caused by Dentsply
shall extend the time for divestiture under paragraph IIL.B.3. in an
amount equal to the delay, as determined by the Commission or the
court for a court-appointed trustee.
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5. Subject to Dentsply's absolute and unconditional obligation to
divest at no minimum price and the purpose of the divestiture as
stated in paragraph II.B., the trustee shall use his or her best efforts
to negotiate the most favorable price and terms available with each
prospective acquirer for the divestiture of either the Valiant Assets or
the Worldwide Valiant Assets. Either divestiture shall be made in the
manner set out in paragraph II; provided, however, if the trustee
receives bona fide offers from more than one acquirer, and if the
Commission determines to approve more than one such acquirer, the
trustee shall divest to the acquirer selected by Dentsply from among
those approved by the Commission.

6. The trustee shall serve, without bond or other security, at the
cost and expense of Dentsply, on such reasonable and customary
terms and conditions as the Commission or a court may set. The
trustee shall have authority to employ, at the cost and expense of
Dentsply, such consultants, accountants, attorneys, investment
bankers, business brokers, appraisers, and other representatives and
assistants as are reasonably necessary to carry out the trustee’s duties
and responsibilities. The trustee shall account for all monies derived
from the sale and all expenses incurred. After approval by the
Commission and, in the case of a court-appointed trustee, by the
court, of the account of the trustee, including fees for his or her
services, all remaining monies shall be paid at the direction of
Dentsply and the trustee’s power shall be terminated. The trustee's
compensation shall be based at least in significant part on a
commission arrangement contingent on the trustee’s divesting the
Valiant Assets or the Worldwide Valiant Assets.

7. Dentsply shall indemnify the trustee and hold the trustee
harmless against any losses, claims, damages, or liabilities arising in
any manner out of, or in connection with, the trustee’s duties under
this order.

8. Within thirty (30) days after appointment of the trustee, and
subject to the prior approval of the Commission and, in the case of
a court-appointed trustee, of the court, Dentsply shall execute a trust
agreement that transfers to the trustee all rights and powers
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necessary to permit the trustee to effect the divestiture required by
this order.

9. If the trustee ceases to act or fails to act diligently, a substitute
trustee shall be appointed in the same manner as provided in
paragraph III.A. of this order.

10. The Commission or, in the case of a court-appointed trustee,
the court, may on its own initiative or at the request of the trustee
issue such additional orders or directions as may be necessary or
appropriate to accomplish the divestiture required by this order.

11. The trustee shall have no obligation or authority to operate
or maintain either the Valiant Assets or the Worldwide Valiant
Assets.

12. The trustee shall report in writing to Dentsply and to the
Commission every thirty (30) days concerning the trustee's efforts to
accomplish divestiture.

Iv.

It is further ordered, That within sixty (60) days after the date this
order becomes final and every sixty (60) days thereafter until
Dentsply has fully complied with the provisions of paragraphs II. and
I11. of this order, Dentsply shall submit to the Commission a verified
written report setting forth in detail the manner and form in which it
intends to comply, is complying, or has complied with those
provisions. Dentsply shall include in its compliance reports, among
other things that are required from time to time, a full description of
substantive contacts or negotiations for the divestiture, including the
identity of all parties contacted. Dentsply also shall include in its
compliance reports copies of all written communications to and from
such parties, all internal memoranda, and all reports and recommen-
dations concerning divestiture.
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V.

It is further ordered, That for a ten (10) year period commencing
on the date this order becomes final, Dentsply shall cease and desist
from acquiring, without the prior approval of the Federal Trade
Commission, directly or indirectly, through subsidiaries, partnerships,
or otherwise, any equity or other interest in, or the whole or any part
of the stock or share capital of, any person or business that is engaged
in any way in the manufacture, sale, shipment or distribution of silver
alloy in the United States, or, except in the ordinary course of
business, any assets used or previously used in (and still suitable for
use in), the manufacture, sale, shipment or distribution of silver alloy.
One year from the date this order becomes final and annually
thereafter for nine years on the anniversary date of this order,
Dentsply shall file with the Secretary of the Federal Trade
Commission a verified written report of its compliance with this
paragraph.

VI

It is further ordered, That for the purposes of determining or
securing compliance with this order, and subject to any legally
recognized privilege, upon written request and on reasonable notice
to Dentsply, Dentsply shall permit any duly authorized represen-
tatives of the Commission:

A. Access, during office hours and in the presence of counsel, to
inspect and copy all books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence,
memoranda and other records and documents in the possession or
under the control of Dentsply relating to any matters contained in this
consent order; and

B. Upon five (5) days notice to Dentsply, and without restraint
or interference from Dentsply, to interview officers or employees of
Dentsply, who may have counsel present, regarding such matters.
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VIL

It is further ordered, That Dentsply shall notify the Commission
at least thirty (30) days prior to any change in the corporation such as
dissolution, assignment, or sale, resulting in the emergence of a
successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, and
any other change that may affect compliance obligations arising out
of the order.

SCHEDULE |

VALIANT MANUFACTURING/PACKAGING EQUIPMENT

Magnathermic Melter
Atomizer
Ovens (2)
Ohio grinder
America centrifuge
Ball mill
Sweco sieve
Vortex particle classifier
Pfaudler treating vessel Drum tumbler
ATM centrifuge
2 cu. ft. Paterson Kelly Blender
Box siever
Stokes tablet machine
Stacker/packager
Aidlin plugger
Synthron Capper
Fasson labler
DMG Sure Cap filling machine
Old design Sure Cap filling machine
Sure-Cap Mold

HOLD SEPARATE AGREEMENT

This Hold Separate Agreement (the “Agreement”) is by and
among Dentsply International, Inc. (Dentsply), a corporation
organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the
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laws of Delaware, with its office and principal place of business at
510 West College Avenue, York, Pennsylvania; and the Federal
Trade Commission (“the Commission™), an independent agency of
the United States Government, established under the Federal Trade
Commission Act of 1914, 15 U.S.C. 41, et seq. (collectively, the
“Parties”).

Premises

Whereas, on April 21, 1992, Dentsply entered into an agreement
with Johnson & Johnson (“J&J”) to acquire certain assets of its
Professional Dental Care division, (hereinafter “Acquisition”); and

Whereas, J&J, with its principal office and place of business
located at One Johnson & Johnson Plaza, New Brunswick, New
Jersey, produces and markets, among other things, silver alloy
products; and

Whereas, the Commission is now investigating the acquisition to
determine whether it would violate any of the statutes enforced by the
Commission; and

Whereas, if the Commission accepts the attached agreement
containing consent order (“consent order”), the Commission must
place it on the public record for a period of at least sixty (60) days
and may subsequently withdraw such acceptance pursuant to the
provisions of Section 2.34 of the Commission’s Rules; and

Whereas, the Commission is concerned that if an understanding
is not reached, preserving the status quo ante of Dentsply’s Valiant
Business during the period prior to the final acceptance of the consent
order by the Commission's (after the 60-day public notice period),
divestiture resulting from any proceeding challenging the legality of
the acquisition might not be possible, or might be less than an
effective remedy; and

Whereas, the Commission is concerned that if the acquisition is
consummated, it will be necessary to preserve the Commission's
ability to require the divestiture of the Valiant Assets or the
Worldwide Valiant Assets as described in paragraph I of the consent
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order and the Commission’s right to have the Valiant Business
continued as a viable competitor; and
Whereas, the purpose of the agreement and the consent order is

to:

1. Preserve the viability of the Valiant Business pending the
divestiture of the Valiant Assets or the Worldwide Valiant Assets, as
defined in paragraphs L.I. and I.L. of the consent order, as a viable
and ongoing enterprise,

2. Remedy any anticompetitive effects of the acquisition, and

3. Preserve the Valiant Business as an ongoing, viable silver
alloy business until divestiture is achieved; and

Whereas, Dentsply’s entering into this agreement shall in no way
be construed as an admission by Dentsply that the acquisition is
illegal; and

Whereas, Dentsply understands that no act or transaction
contemplated by this agreement shall be deemed immune or exempt
from the provisions of the antitrust laws of the Federal Trade
Commission Act by reason of anything contained in this agreement.

Now, therefore, the parties agree, upon the understanding that the
Commission has not yet determined whether the acquisition will be
challenged, and in consideration of the Commission's agreement that,
unless the Commission determines to reject the consent order, it will
not seek further relief from Dentsply with respect to the acquisition,
except that the Commission may exercise any and all rights to
enforce this Hold Separate Agreement and the consent order to which
it is annexed and made a part thereof, and in the event the required
divestiture is not accomplished, to appoint a trustee to seek
divestiture of the Valiant Assets or the Worldwide Valiant Assets
pursuant to the consent order, as follows:

1. Dentsply agrees to execute and be bound by the attached
consent order.



20 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Decision and Order 6 F.T.C.

2. Dentsply agrees that from the date this agreement is accepted
until the earliest of the dates listed in subparagraphs 2.a - 2.b, it will
comply with the provisions of paragraph 3 of this agreement:

a. Three business days after the Commission withdraws its
acceptance of the consent order pursuant to the provisions of Section
2.34 of the Commission’s rules;

b. The day after the divestiture required by the consent order has
been completed.

3. Because complete isolation of the Valiant Business from
Dentsply’s marketing and sales operations could cause irreparable
harm to that business and make it difficult or impossible to divest the
Valiant Assets as an ongoing, viable alloy products business,
Dentsply will manage and maintain the Valiant Assets, as they are
presently constituted, on the following terms and conditions:

a. Dentsply will appoint two individuals, one each from among
Dentsply's current employees working in the marketing and sales
areas of the L.D. Caulk division of Dentsply to manage and maintain
the Valiant Business. These individuals (“the management team’)
shall manage the Valiant Business independently of the management
of Dentsply’s other businesses, except that these individuals may
provide information to and receive information from Dentsply’s
production and financial personnel, and Dentsply’s marketing and
sales forces to the extent necessary to effectively operate the Valiant
Business and arrange for the Valiant Products to be marketed and
sold. The management team shall not thereafter, until theValiant
Assets are divested pursuant to the consent order, be in any way
involved in the marketing or selling of any Dispersalloy Product.

b. The management team, in its capacity as such, shall report
directly and exclusively to an independent auditor/manager, to be
appointed by Dentsply with the consent of the Commission. The
independent auditor/manager shall have exclusive control over the
operations of the Valiant Business, with responsibility for the
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management of the Valiant Business and for maintaining the
independence of that business.

c. Dentsply shall not exercise direction or control over, or
influence directly or indirectly the independent auditor/manager or
the management team or any of its operations relating to the
operations of the Valiant Business; provided, however, that Dentsply
may exercise only such direction and control over the management
team and the Valiant Assets as is necessary to assure compliance with
this agreement and with the order.

d. Dentsply shall maintain the viability and marketability of the
Valiant Assets and shall not sell, transfer, encumber (other than in the
normal course of business), or otherwise impair their marketability
or viability. Dentsply shall ensure the uninterrupted supply of
Valiant Products and shall not impede production nor allow
inventories to fall below reasonable levels.

e. Except for the management team, Dentsply shall not permit
any other Dentsply employee, officer, or director to be involved in
the management of the Valiant Assets. Nothing in this paragraph
shall preclude Dentsply’s sales, marketing, manufacturing, financial,
accounting, or distribution personnel from providing services to the
management team in the ordinary course of business as set forth in
subparagraph 3.a.

f. Except as required by law, and except to the extent that
necessary information is exchanged in the course of evaluating the
acquisition, defending investigations or litigation, or negotiating
agreements to divest assets, Dentsply shall not receive or have access
to, or the use of, any material confidential information about the
Valiant Business or the activities of the management team in
managing that business not in the public domain, nor shall the
management team receive or have access to, or the use of, any
material confidential information about the Dispersalloy Business or
the activities of Dentsply in managing the Dispersalloy Business not
in the public domain. Any such information that is obtained pursuant
to this subparagraph shall be used only for the purpose set forth in
this subparagraph. (“Material confidential information,” as used
herein, means competitively sensitive or proprietary information not
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written request with reasonable notice to Dentsply made to its
principal office in the United States, Dentsply shall permit any duly
authorized representative or representatives of the Commission:

a. Access during the office hours of Dentsply and in the presence
of counsel to inspect and copy all books, ledgers, accounts, corre-
spondence, memoranda, and other records and documents in the pos-
session or under the control of Dentsply relating to compliance with
this agreement;

b. Upon five (5) days notice to Dentsply, and without restraint or
interference from it, to interview officers or employees of Dentsply,
who may have counsel present, regarding any such matters.

c. Information obtained by the Commission pursuant to this
provision shall be given confidential treatment pursuant to Sections
6(f) and 21(f) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 46(f)
and 56(f).

6. This agreement shall not be binding until approved by the
Commission.

APPENDIX A

NOTICE OF DIVESTITURE AND
REQUIREMENT FOR CONFIDENTIALITY

Dentsply International Inc. (“Dentsply”) has entered into a
consent order and Hold Separate Agreement with the Federal Trade
Commission relating to the divestiture of certain Dentsply silver alloy
assets and products, including its Valiant, Valiant Ph.D, Valiant
Snap-Set and Valiant Extended Time products. Until such assets and
products are divested, they must be managed and maintained as a
separate, ongoing business, independent of all other competing
product lines of Dentsply. All competitive information relating to all
Valiant product lines must be retained and maintained by the persons
responsible for the management of these products on a confidential
basis and such persons shall be prohibited from providing,
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discussing, exchanging, circulating or otherwise furnishing any such
information to or with any other person whose employment involves
any Dentsply competing alloy product, including Dispersalloy,
except to the extent such information is required in connection with
the manufacture or sale of Valiant products. All such persons
responsible for the management of Dentsply’s competing silver alloy
products shall be prohibited from providing, discussing, exchanging,
circulating or otherwise furnishing any competition information
about those products to or with any person responsible for Valiant
products.

Any violation of the consent order or the Hold Separate
Agreement, incorporated by reference as part of the consent order,
subjects the violator to civil penalties and other relief as provided by
law.

STATEMENT OF COMMISSIONER MARY L. AZCUENAGA,
CONCURRING IN PART AND DISSENTING IN PART

I concur in the decision to accept the consent order insofar as it
provides a remedy for the anticompetitive effects of the acquisition
in the alloy amalgam market. I dissent from the decision not to seek
relief in the pit and fissure sealant market.

It is not possible to distinguish the merger’s competitive effect in
the sealant market from that in the amalgam market on the basis of
market structure as both are highly concentrated markets, and both
become much more concentrated as a result of the merger. In fact,
concentration is higher in the sealant market, and Dentsply
International’s postmerger market share will be significantly higher
in the sealant market than in the amalgam market. Conditions of
entry are similar in both markets, and there are no countervailing
efficiencies in either market. Overall, I cannot find a reason, either
in principle or in the evidence, to seek relief in one market but not the
other.

A compromise in which the Commission obtains relief in the
amalgam market in exchange for which it forgoes relief in the smaller
sealant market is not a bargain that the Commission should strike.
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The compromise may benefit amalgam consumers only at the
expense of sealant consumers. The acquisition may substantially
lessen competition in two product markets, and the Commission
should seek relief in both markets.

STATEMENT OF COMMISSIONER DEBORAH K. OWEN

I have voted in favor of the consent agreement in this case
because I have reason to believe that the effect of the proposed
acquisition might be substantially to lessen competition in the market
for premium silver alloy in the United States. Because I do not
believe that the acquisition in the premium sealant market would
have the same effect, I believe that the Commission has correctly
decided not to challenge that part of the acquisition.

This case, in my judgment, presents the Commission with the
difficult scenario of two markets in transition: one experiencing
increasing impact from non-premium brands, and the second, growth
due to increased demand. As a result, while concentration is high, it
is particularly important for us to examine the potential adverse
competitive effects of the merger to see whether stories of anticom-
petitive effects in both markets appear viable.

In the silver alloy market, after a review of the information
available, I have concluded that anticompetitive effects may follow
from the proposed merger because non-premium brands have not yet
achieved sufficient competitive significance. This was, however, a
close call, in my judgment. By contrast, the changing nature of the
sealant market, in my view, makes the sustainability of
anticompetitive activity by premium brands more unlikely, despite
the high concentration in that market. Accordingly, I do not believe
that Commission action is warranted, based on the information
available.

This merger presented complex and difficult issues on which
reasonable people could clearly disagree. However, on balance, I
believe that the result achieved by the proposed consent is entirely
appropriate.
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IN THE MATTER OF

UNITED STATES GOLF ASSOCIATION

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE
TEXTILE FIBER PRODUCTS IDENTIFICATION ACT AND
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3408. Complaint, Jan. 6, 1993--Decision, Jan. 6, 1993

This consent order requires, among other things, a New Jersey-based non-profit
corporation to clearly state in all future advertisements and product
descriptions in mail order catalogs, and in all mail order promotional material,
whether its clothing and other textile-fiber merchandise are manufactured or
processed in the United States, or imported, or both. In addition, the
respondent is required to use proper generic fiber names, consistent with the
Textile Fiber Products Identification Act, and not to mention or imply fiber
content of a fiber not present in the product.

Appearances

For the Commission: Robert Easton and Ronald D. Lewis.
For the respondent: Simeon M. Kriesberg, Mayer, Brown &
Clart, Washington, D.C.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
United States Golf Association, a non-profit corporation, hereinafter
referred to as respondent, has violated the provisions of the Federal
Trade Commission Act and of the Textile Fiber Products
Identification Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest,
hereby alleges:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent United States Golf Association, is
a non-profit corporation organized, existing and doing business under
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware with its office and
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principal place of business located at Liberty Corner Road, Far Hills,
New Jersey.

PAR. 2. Respondent is now, and for some time past has been,
engaged, directly or through licensees, by means of mail order
catalogs, in the advertising, offering for sale, sale and distribution of
a variety of products in or affecting commerce, including textile
wearing apparel and other textile fiber products as “textile fiber
product” and “commerce” are defined in the Textile Fiber Products
Identification Act (15 U.S.C. 70) (hereafter referred to as the Textile
Act). The allegations in this complaint relate to mail order catalogs
published prior to June 1991.

PAR. 3. In September 1984 Congress amended the Textile Act
to require that catalogs and other mail order promotional material
disclose whether textile fiber products offered for sale are imported
or domestically produced or both. The amendment states:

Misbranding and False Advertising of Textile Fiber Products

(i) For the purposes of this Act, a textile fiber product shall be considered to be
falsely or deceptively advertised in any mail order catalog or mail order
promotional material which is used in the direct sale or direct offering for sale of
such textile fiber product, unless such textile fiber product description states in a
clear and conspicuous manner that such textile fiber product is processed or
manufactured in the United States of America; or imported, or both. (15 U.S.C.
70b(i))

PAR. 4. The Commission, pursuant to authority under the Textile
Act to make such rules and regulations as may be necessary and
proper for the enforcement of the Textile Act (15 U.S.C. 70e),
promulgated a rule effective April 17, 1985, relating to country of
origin in mail order advertising. Rule 34 states:

When a textile fiber product is advertised in any mail order catalog or mail order
promotional material, the description of such product shall contain a clear and
conspicuous statement that the product was either made in U.S.A., imported, or
both. Other words or phrases with the same meaning may be used. The statement
of origin required by this section shall not be inconsistent with the origin labeling
of the product being advertised. (16 CFR 303.34, as amended)
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PAR. 5. Section 4(b) of the Textile Act requires that a label
attached to an imported or domestic textile product disclose the
identity of the constituent fibers by their generic names. Section 4(c)
of the Textile Act states that if fiber content is mentioned or implied
in a written advertisement, then the proper generic names as required
under Section 4(b) of the Textile Act must be disclosed. Section 4(b)
of the Textile Act reads, in part, as follows:

.. .a textile fiber product shall be misbranded if a stamp, tag, label, or other
means of identification, or substitute therefore authorized by Section 5, is not on (1)
The constituent fiber or combination of fibers in the textile fiber product,
designating with equal prominence each natural or manufactured fiber in the textile
fiber product by its generic name . . .

Section 4(c) of the Textile Act reads:

(c) For the purpose of this Act, a textile fiber product shall be considered to
be falsely or deceptively advertised if any disclosure or implication of fiber content
is made in any written advertisement which is used to aid, promote, or assist
directly or indirectly in the sale or offering for sale of such textile fiber product,
unless the same information as that required to be shown on the stamp, tag, label,
or other identification under Section 4(b) (1) and (2) is contained in the heading,
body, or other part of such written advertisement, except that the percentages of the
fiber present in the textile fiber product need not be stated. (15 U.S.C. 70b(c))

PAR. 6. The Commission, pursuant to authority under the Textile
Act to make such rules and regulations as may be necessary and
proper for the enforcement of the Textile Act (15 U.S.C. 70e),
promulgated Rules 40, 41 and 42 relating to fiber content disclosures
in advertising. Rules 40, 41 and 42 read:

Rule 40 - Use of Terms in Written Advertisements
Which Imply Presence of a Fiber.

The use of terms in written advertisements which are descriptive of a method
of manufacture, construction, or weave, and which by custom and usage are also
indicative of a textile fiber or fibers, or the use of terms in such advertisements
which constitute or connote the name or presence of a fiber or fibers, shall be
deemed to be an implication of fiber content under Section 4(c) of the Act, except
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that the provisions of this section shall not be applicable to non-deceptive shelf or
display signs in retail stores indicating the location of textile fiber products and not
intended as advertisements.

Rule 41 - Use of Fiber Trademarks and Generic
Names in Advertising.

(a) In advertising textile fiber products, the use of a fiber trademark shall
require a full disclosure of the fiber content information required by the Act and
Regulations in at least one instance in the advertisement.

(b) Where a fiber trademark is used in advertising textile fiber products
containing more than one fiber, other than permissible ornamentation, such fiber
trademark and the generic name of the fiber must appear in the required fiber
content information in immediate proximity and conjunction with each other in
plainly legible type or lettering of equal size and conspicuousness.

(c) Where a fiber trademark is used in advertising textile fiber products
containing only one fiber, other than permissive ornamentation, such fiber trade-
mark and the generic name of the fiber must appear in immediate proximity and
conjunction with each other in plainly legible and conspicuous type or lettering at
least once in the advertisement.

Rule 42 - Arrangement of Information in Advertising
Textile Fiber Products.

(a) Where a textile fiber product is advertised in such manner as to require
disclosure of the information required by the Act and Regulations, all parts of the
required information shall be stated in immediate conjunction with each other in
legible and conspicuous type or lettering of equal size and prominence. In making
the required disclosure of the fiber content of the product, the generic names of
fibers present in an amount five percentumn or more of the total fiber weight of the
product together with any fibers disclosed in accordance with Rule 3(b) shall appear
in order of predominance by weight, to be followed by the designation other fiber
or other fibers if a fiber or fibers required to be so designated be present. [16 CFR
303.42, as amended, effective December 13, 1965.]

PAR. 7. Pursuant to Section 3 of the Textile Act, 15 U.S.C. 70a,
violation of that Act and the Federal Trade Commission rules issued
thereunder is an unfair method of competition and an unfair and
deceptive act or practice under the Federal Trade Commission Act.

PAR. 8. Respondent advertised or offered for sale textile fiber
products in mail order catalogs or mail order promotional material
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without a clear and conspicuous statement that the products were
processed or manufactured in the United States of America, or
imported, or both.

PAR. 9. Respondent advertised or offered for sale textile fiber
products in mail order catalogs or mail order promotional materials
in which fiber content was mentioned or implied in written advertise-
ments, but the generic names were not disclosed.

PAR. 10. Respondent advertised or offered for sale textile fiber
products in mail order catalogs or mail order promotional materials
in which the manufacturer’s trademark “Cashmerlon” was used to
describe fiber content when there was no cashmere present.

PAR. 11. Respondent’s sale, offering for sale and advertising of
textile fiber products in or affecting commerce were in violation of
the Textile Act and the Federal Trade Commission rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, and constituted unfair methods
of competition and unfair and deceptive acts and practices in
commerce, in violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof, and the respondent having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft complaint which the Bureau of Consumer Protection
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and
which, if issued by the Commission, would charge respondent with
violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act and the Textile Fiber
Products Identification Act; and

The respondent, its attorneys, and the counsel for the Commis-
sion having thereafter executed an agreement containing: a consent
order, an admission by the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts
set forth in the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the
signing of said agreement is for settlement purposes only and does
not constitute an admission by respondent that the law has been
violated as alleged in such complaint, and waivers and other
provisions as required by the Commission’s Rules; and
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The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Acts, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges that in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the
executed consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public
record for a period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with
the procedure prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission
hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent United States Golf Association is a non-profit
corporation organized, existing and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware with its office and
principal place of business presently located at Liberty Corner Road,
Far Hills, New Jersey.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

ORDER

It is ordered, That respondent United States Golf Association, a
non-profit corporation, its successors and assigns, trading under its
own name or under any other name or names, and its officers, agents,
licensees, representatives and employees, directly or through any
corporate or other device, in connection with the offering for sale,
selling or advertising of any textile fiber product in any mail order
catalog or mail order promotional material which is used in the direct
sale or direct offering for sale of such textile fiber product, in
commerce, as the terms “textile fiber product” and “commerce” are
defined in the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act (15 U.S.C.
70) ("Textile Act"), do forthwith cease and desist from:
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1. Failing to state in the description of such textile fiber product
in a clear and conspicuous manner that such textile fiber-product is
processed or manufactured in the United States of America, or
imported, or both;

2. Mentioning or implying fiber content without using the
generic fiber names in a manner consistent with the Textile Act and
the rules and regulations thereunder; and

3. Mentioning or implying fiber content for a fiber which is not
present in such textile fiber product.

II.

It is further ordered, That respondent shall notify the Commission
at least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in the
respondent such as dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the
emergency of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of
subsidiaries or any other such change in the corporation which may
affect compliance obligations arising out of the order.

1.

It is further ordered, That respondent shall forthwith distribute a
copy of this order to each of its agents, licensees and representatives
acting in connection with the offering for sale, selling or advertising
of any textile fiber product in any mail order catalog or mail order
promotional material which is used in the direct sale or direct
offering for sale of such textile fiber product, in commerce, as the
terms “textile fiber product” and “commerce” are defined in the
Textile Fiber Products Identification Act (15 U.S.C. 70) (“Textile
Act”).
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IV.

It is further ordered, That respondent shall within sixty (60) days
after service upon it of this order, file with the Commission a report,
in writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in which it has
complied with this order.
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IN THE MATTER OF

MEDICAL MARKETING SERVICES, INC., ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3409. Complaint, Jan. 12, 1993--Decision, Jan. 12, 1993

This consent order prohibits, among other things, a Florida firm and its founder
from misrepresenting in advertising or promotional materials -- with respect to
any chemical face peel procedure or any health care service -- the degree of
risk, level of pain, recovery period, or results associated with the procedure;
any entity's approval or endorsement of the procedure; or any training the
respondents provide for the procedure and services.

Appearances

For the Commission: Richard F. Kelly and Renate Kinscheck.
For the respondents: Pro se.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
Medical Marketing Services, Inc., a corporation, and Michael
Walerstein, individually and as an officer of Medical Marketing
Services, Inc., (hereinafter “respondents”), have violated the
provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, and it appearing to
the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be
in the public interest, alleges:

PARAGRAPH 1. (a) Respondent Medical Marketing Services,
Inc. (hereinafter “MMS”) is a Florida corporation. Its office and
principal place of business was located at 860, Southwest §89th
Terrace, Plantation, Florida.

(b) Respondent Michael Walerstein (hereinafter “Walerstein”) is
the founder, president and sole stockholder of MMS. He directs,
controls, and formulates the acts and practices of the corporate
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respondent, including the acts and practices alleged in this complaint.
Respondent’s address is 3101 Port Royale Blvd., Apt. 217, Fort
Lauderdale, Florida.

PAR. 2. Since at least early 1986, and continuing thereafter,
respondents have promoted and sold training and marketing services
relating to a chemical face peel procedure respondents refer to as
“Endodermology.” Respondents have promoted and sold their
services to licensed physicians (hereinafter “clients”) throughout the
United States through correspondence and other written materials.
Respondents have provided clients with a promotional kit consisting
of advertising materials, brochures, a video tape, sample sales scripts,
press releases, direct mail letters, fact sheets and other promotional
materials (hereinafter “promotional materials”) that contain informa-
tion about the aforementioned chemical face peel (hereinafter “peel
procedure”), for the clients’ use in marketing the peel procedure to
the public. These promotional materials include, but are not
necessarily limited to, the attached Exhibits A through F.

PAR. 3. The acts and practices of respondents alleged in this
complaint are and have been in or affecting commerce, as
“commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act.

PAR. 4. Respondents’ promotional materials contain statements
concerning the safety, efficacy and nature of the peel procedure,
including the following:

(a) “Non-surgical, safe, effective procedure performed only by trained
physicians.” [Exhibit A]

(b) “...itis a completely safe ... method.” [Exhibit B]

(c) “Everyone has a different tolerance for pain. A little itch was the only
discomfort I had. . . Some felt a little sunburn or a little itch.” [Video text]

(d) . .. this safe and painless way of reversing the aging process.” [{Exhibit
C]

(e) “Yes. You CAN look younger in just 8 days. Imagine the benefits of
NON-SURGICAL FACIAL REJUVENATION.” [Exhibit D]

(f) “Effective in . .. removing wrinkles, lines, spots and folds in the face.”
[Exhibit E]

(g) “As opposed to a chemical peel, Endodermology is designed to evenly
reach certain layers of the epidermis that have been affected by aging or the
environment . . ..” [Exhibit F]
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(h) “RECOGNIZED PROCEDURE . . . accepted by the American Medical
Association (AMA)” [Exhibit E]

PAR. 5. By and through the statements in the preceding para-
graph and others not specifically set forth herein of similar import
and meaning, respondents have, directly or by implication, repre-
sented the following:

(a) The peel procedure is free of the risk of serious adverse
medical complications. In fact, the peel procedure is not free of the
risk of serious adverse medical complications.

(b) The peel procedure involves little or no pain or discomfort.
In fact, for many people, the peel procedure involves significant pain
or discomfort.

(c) The peel procedure involves a recovery period of eight days.
In fact, the peel procedure typically involves a recovery period of
more than eight days. .

(d) The peel procedure eliminates facial folds of skin. In fact, the
peel procedure does not eliminate facial folds of skin.

(e) The peel procedure is not a chemical face peel. In fact, the
peel procedure is a chemical face peel.

() The peel procedure is accepted or recognized by the American
Medical Association. In fact, the peel procedure is not accepted or
recognized by the American Medical Association. ‘

Therefore, the representations set forth in paragraph five were,
and are, false and misleading.

PAR. 6. By and through the statements set forth in paragraph
four referring to the safety of the peel procedure, and others not
specifically set forth herein of similar import and meaning,
respondents have represented, directly or by implication, that the peel
procedure 1s unqualifiedly safe. Respondents have failed to disclose
that the peel procedure entails a risk of serious adverse complica-
tions. In light of respondents' representation that this procedure is
unqualifiedly safe, such failure to disclose is a deceptive omission of
material fact.
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PAR. 7. Respondents’ promotional materials feature a “before”
and “after” photograph of a woman and, in juxtaposition therewith,
a caption “IMAGINE LOOKING YOUNGER In just 8 days.” By
and through these promotional materials, respondents have
represented, directly or by implication, that the “after” photograph
accurately depicts the likely condition of the typical patient's skin
within eight days of when the peel procedure is administered.

PAR. 8. In fact, the “after” photograph referred to in the
preceding paragraph does not accurately depict the likely condition
of the typical patient’s skin within eight days of when the peel
procedure is administered. As opposed to the representation in the
“after” photograph, the typical patient’s skin is likely to be quite red
and swollen at the end of eight days. Therefore, the representation
set forth in paragraph seven was, and is, false and misleading.

PAR. 9. By and through the aforesaid acts and practices,
respondents engaged in unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or
affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45(a).
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EXHIBIT A

LOOK YOUNGER IN 1988
THAN 10U DID

Non-surgical, safe, effective procedure performed only by trained physicians.
A new appearance can be yours in days.

€ 197 Medxcal Marketing Services. Inc. Al Rights Reserved
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Receptionist:

Patient:

Receptionist:

Patient:

Receptionist:

Patient:

Receptionist:

Patient:

Receptionist:

Patient:

Receptionist:

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Complaint 16 ET.C.

EXHIBIT B

RECEPTIONIST AND TELEPHONE
INFORMATION REQUESTS

“Good Morning/Afternoon”

“I saw your advertisement and would like to find out more about
it.”

“Terrific, I’ll set up an appointment for you with our Consultant.
This is a free, no obligation consultation. Do you prefer morn-
ings or afternoons?”’

Check Appointment Book and tell caller when you have an
opening.

“How much does it cost?”

“Unfortunately, it is virtually impossible to give you costs with-
out our Consultant seeing you, as each person has individual
problems and must be seen in order to evaluate his/her particular
problem area.”

“You must be able to give me some idea of the cost...”

“It ranges from ____ to ____ depending on your needs.”
(Doctor to supply price range prior to consultation.)

“I can’t come in, I'm working, etc.”

“We are open on evenings or Saturdays. Is that con-
venient for you?”

I'd like to know something more about it before I come in.”

It is a non-surgical procedure performed by our Doctor in the
office. It removes wrinkles, blemishes, age spots, so in just 8
days you can look 10-15 years younger and it is a completely
safe, reliable and effective method that has been in existence for
over 60 years. I would like for you to come in and meet with our
consultant who has had the procedure done and talk to her. She
can answer any questions that you might have. Of course, this
is a free, no obligation appointment. Would you prefer to come
in during the day or in the evening?

If patient still hesitates to make an appointment, say:

“I can send you a brochure if you like, explaining our process.”

Get name, address and telephone number. Mail brochure with an Enclosure Letter.
Record information on the daily Information Calls form and give these to the
Consultant at the end of each week.
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35 Complaint

EXHIBIT C

Sample Announcement of Seminars for General Public

(place on company letterhead)

(date)
Contact: (name, telephone number)

Cosmetic Facial Rejuvenation Seminar in (City)

(City, State) -- (Company Name) is sponsoring a free seminar on Endodermology --
a medical, non-surgical cosmetic facial rejuvenation process that can remove up to 15
years from one’s appearance. The seminar will be held (date) from (hours) at the
(place), (address) in (city).

The seminar will focus on our society’s desire for a youthful appearance and how it can
be accomplished through this safe and painless way of reversing the aging process.
Persons who have undergone the treatment will be available with Dr. (Name) of the
(company name) to answer your questions. A reception will follow. For reservations

call (phone) in (city).

Hi#
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Complaint 116 ET.C.

EXHIBIT D

TOUNGER

Yes. You CAN look younger
in just 8 days. Imagine the
benefits of NON-
SURGICAL FACIAL
REJUVENATION.

A proven and effective
medical procedure is
available now under the

complete supervision of
LICENSED PHYSICIANS.

A techmique designed to
remove wrinkles and
blemishes from your face as
well as 5, 10, or even 20
years from your
appearance.

Consider the benefits of
NON-SURGICAL FACIAL
REJUVENATION to your
face...and to your life.

In just
8 days

Call now for your
CONSULTATION.
NO FEE.

NO OBLIGATION.

IMAGINE LOOKING

® Metica) Marketrg Services, Inc. All Rghty Reserved 1987
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EXPLANATION:

PROCESS:

BENEFITS:

RESULTS:

MEDICAL MARKETING SERVICES, INC. 43

Complaint

EXHIBITE

Endodermology™ Fact Sheet
(May Accompany Your Press Release)

(Place on Company Letterhead)

Medically approved non-surgical, cosmetic facial reju-
venation procedure

BWo—

. solution applied to face

area sealed with surgical paper tape mask

. mask removed and replaced by powdered mask
. powdered mask removed eight days later

Effective in:

restoring sun-damaged skin
removing wrinkles, lines, spots, and folds in the face
stimulates deeply embedded dormant skin cells

glowing fresh, smooth, soft and firm textured skin
can remove 5, 10 to 15 years from face

enduring effects of treatment continue as age proc-
ess resumes

LOCATION OF TREATMENT AND RECOVERY:

Eight - Day procedure

treatment is performed in physician’s office
recovery period in aftercare facility

RECOGNIZED PROCEDURE:

accepted by the American Medical Association
(AMA)

chemicals used approved by Food and Drug
Administration
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Complaint HI6F.T.C.
EXHIBITE
FOUNDED: The basic procedure had its beginnings in Europe

and was bought to America in the early part of the
century by German dermatologists. Over the
years, the procedure has been modified and im-
proved to its present state of effectiveness.

*  (company name)
(address)
(telephone)

* (physician’s name)
(physician’s credentials)

¢ (consultant’s name)

H#H#
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EXHIBITF

SAMPLE GENERAL ENDODERMOLOGY™ RELEASE
(place on company letterhead)

(Date)
CONTACT: (name, phone)

THE MIRACLE OF ENDODERMOLOGY™
(City, State)--

Nature deals us a harsh blow, as age and the effects of the sun creep into the body --
particularly the face.

In this day and age, people are now feeling younger and working hard at looking
as young as they feel. You can shape up a body but it’s virtually impossible to hide
a sun or age-ravaged face.

Thanks to a process called Endodermology,™ the clock of nature can be turned
back by 10-20 years in both men and women who are experiencing the manifesta-
tion of wrinkles, spots or roughness of the skin’s epidermis. A safe, non-surgical
face rejuvenation procedure, Endodermology,™ works on the outer layers of skin.
As opposed to a chemical peel, Endodermology™ is designed to evenly reach
certain layers of the epidermis that have been affected by aging or the environment
(sun, wind or pollution).

The most remarkable aspect of Endodermology™ is the enduring effects of the
process. Soft, smooth, glowing skin replaces the old skin for years following
treatment. As the aging process resumes, the patient will always look 10-20 years
younger.

Endodermology,™ performed by a select group of medical doctors throughout the
country, is becoming one of the most popular forms of age rejuvenation procedures
in the United States.

Dr. (name, M.D. or D.O.) (name of Company), based in (City, State) offers the
Endodermology™ process in the (city) area. Dr. (name) is located at (address).

For further information on Endodermology™ contact Dr. (name) at the (company
name, phone).

H#HH






